# AR-008-563

DEVELOPMENT OF A MANOUEVRING MODEL FOR THE RAN PRECURSOR MINE SWEEPING



BRENDON ANDERSON AND GARY CAMPANELLA



MRL-TR-93-33

JANUARY 1994



This document has been approved for public release and salet its distribution is unlimited.

APPROVED

C Commonwealth of Australia

MATERIALS RESEARCH LABORATORY

DSTO

FOR PUBLIC RELEASE

THE UNITED STATES NATIONAL TECHNICAL INFORMATION SERVICE IS AUTHORISED TO REPRODUCE AND SELL THIS REPORT

1

.

.

Accesion For			
NTIS	CRA&I	<b>N</b>	
DTIC	TAB	Ó I	
Unarine	bunced		
Justification			
By Distribution / Availability Codes			
Dist	Avail and for Special		
A - 1			

# Development of a Manoeuvring Model for the RAN Precursor Mine Sweeping Drone Boat

#### Brendon Anderson and Gary Campanella

MRL Technical Report MRL-TR-93-33

#### Abstract

A three-degree-of-freedom mathematical model has been developed to describe the zigzag manoeuvring behaviour of a prototype hull form used in the Royal Australian Navy precursor mine sweeping drone boat. The model predicts the yaw rate of the vessel in response to the angle of thrust that a single outboard motor makes with respect to the centre line of the boat. The outboard motor is assumed to supply a constant thrust. This report describes the development of the model from first principles and its transformation into a form suitable for use in closed loop control modelling. The coefficients of the model were determined using full scale manoeuvring data for the prototype hull form.



94 5 16 079

DIEG QUALITY II

DEPARTMENT OF DEFENCE DSTO MATERIALS RESEARCH LABORATORY

Published by

DSTO Materials Research Laboratory Cordite Avenue, Maribyrnong Victoria, 3032 Australia

Telephone: (03) 246 8111 Fax: (03) 246 8999 © Commonwealth of Australia 1993 AR No. 008-563

#### APPROVED FOR PUBLIC RELEASE

#### Authors

#### **Brendon Anderson**



Brendon Anderson graduated with a BSc, majoring in Applied Mathematics, from Monash University in 1989. In 1990 he joined the Materials Research Laboratory where he has been involved in the study of manoeuvring performance of remotely operated vehicles with relevance to areas of maritime defence. Mr Anderson is currently undertaking a Master's of Engineering Science with the University of Tasmania in conjunction with the Australian Maritime Engineering Cooperative Research Centre, and the Materials Research Laboratory, in the prediction of hydrodynamic characteristics of underwater bodies and the analysis of data arising from planar motion mechanism testing.

#### Gary Campanella



Gary Campanella graduated BSc, majoring in Physics, and BComm Eng from Latrobe University in 1979 and 1981 respectively. He joined the Materials Research Laboratory in 1982 where he was involved in developing high speed instrumentation and techniques for the study of shock and related phenomena. Since 1989 he has been leading the development of capability to measure and predict the operational performance of unmanned marine vehicles in mine countermeasure applications. Mr Campanella is currently undertaking a Master's of Engineering in Systems Engineering with the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology.

#### Contents

- 1. INTRODUCTION 7
- 2. DERIVATION OF THE MANOEUVRING MODEL 9
- 2.1 Mathematical Development 11
- 3. DETERMINING THE MODEL COEFFICIENTS 17
- 4. FULL-SCALE DRONE BOAT MANOEUVRING EXPERIMENT 19
- 5. RESULTS 19
- 6. DISCUSSION 22
- 7. CONCLUSION 22
- 8. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 23
- 9. REFERENCES 23

on the class company

10. NOMENCLATURE 24

# Development of a Manoeuvring Model for the RAN Precursor Mine Sweeping Drone Boat

### 1. Introduction

The Precursor Mine Sweeping Drone Boat under development by the Royal Australian Navy will be based on a commercially available tri-hulled vessel made of fibreglass. The vessel will be eight metres in length and powered by two 1000 kW outboard motors. The boat will be fitted with a radio position fixing system and will tow an acoustic influence mine sweeping device.

The mine sweeping drone boat will be operated remotely via a radio link to a shore station. The boat will be equipped with a programmable autopilot to maintain the vessel close to a defined track. The drone boat concept is depicted in figure (1).



Figure 1: The drone boat towing a mine sweeping device. (The sweeping device is submerged, the semi-submerged towfish indicates its position.)

The work described in this report was conducted at a time prior to the construction of the drone boat hull. However, the RAN supplied a six metre version of the same hull form which was used for preliminary investigations of the concept. This report describes the development of a horizontal plane, three-

degree-of-freedom mathematical manoeuvring model for this prototype of the drone boat hull. The model predicts the yaw rate of the vessel as a function of the angle of thrust. The outboard motor is assumed to supply a constant thrust. The effects of wind and sea-state are not considered. The manoeuvring model was specifically developed to simulate and compare the performance of two commercially available autopilot systems (Campanella, Anderson and Spirovski).

The specification for the drone boat autopilot system is shown in figure 2. The drone boat autopilot is programmed with baseline coordinates defined by points A and B. The distance the boat wanders from this baseline is called the cross-track error ( $Y_{te}$ ). This must not be greater than ten metres on either side of the baseline. The autopilot control law is based on measurements of the instantaneous heading of the boat ( $\psi$ ) with respect to the track, the known required track heading or reference heading, and the cross-track error ( $Y_{te}$ ).



Figure 2: Guidance and control specification for the drone boat autopilot system.

#### 2. Derivation of the Manoeuvring Model

The manoeuvring model is required to predict the vessel rate of change of direction (yaw rate, r) in response to the change in angle of the outboard motor with respect to the centreline of the boat (rudder angle,  $\delta$ ). The outboard motor is assumed to produce constant thrust. The model is developed for calm water and neglects forces on the boat due to wind and current. The tow device has been assumed to be a rigid part of the drone boat. The extra drag force due to the tow is accounted for in the model coefficients.



Figure 3: A body fixed coordinate system for surface vessels.

Figure 3 shows the coordinate system used in the equations of motion for the drone boat, where  $x_o$  and  $y_o$  are the global coordinate axes fixed in space and where  $x_o$  lies in the same direction as the baseline AB. The forward direction of the boat lies along the x-axis while the y-axis denotes sidewards direction. The x and y axes are centred at a fixed arbitrary point O on the boat to form the local or body fixed coordinate system. This coordinate system follows the conventional right hand rule, giving all rotations a positive sense in the clockwise direction. The angle  $\psi$  represents the angle of rotation of the boat's x-axis with respect to the global  $x_o$ -axis.



Figure 4: Displacement motions of a surface vessel.

Figure 4 illustrates the three displacement motions; heave, sway and surge. The motion of the boat in the z axial direction is designated heave and is positive downwards. Sidewards motion of the boat is sway. Surge is the third linear motion and is due to forward displacement in the x-axial direction. Heave is neglected in the horizontal manoeuvring model.

Figure 5 illustrates the three rotational motions; pitch, roll, and yaw.

Roll is the rotation about the x-axis, while rotation about the y-axis is pitch. Yaw is the rotation about the z-axis of the vessel. Pitch and roll are neglected in the following horizontal plane model. In theory, any of the six motions can occur in the absence of the other, but in practice coupled motions will exist.



Figure 5: Rotational motions of a surface vessel.

#### 2.1 Mathematical Development

The following is a derivation of the manoeuvring equations for the mathematical model, based on the work of Abkowitz (1969), Gill (1979) and Clarke (1982). The essential assumptions of the model are summarised as follows:

- 1. The variation in the mass of the drone boat due to the consumption of fuel is negligible.
- 2. Forces on the boat due to the rotation of the Earth are neglected. This is equivalent to neglecting Coriolis accelerations.
- 3. The model is linear.
- 4. Pitch, roll, and heave are neglected.
- 5. Speed loss in the surge direction is negligible.
- 6. The thrust produced by the propellor is constant and moments due to the rotation of the propellor are neglected.
- 7. The boat is symmetrical about the x-axis.
- 8. The boat/tow system is assumed rigid in the model.
- 9. The oscillatory nature of the manoeuvres is assumed to have negligible effect on the external forces applied to the boat/tow system.

Consider the vessel in figure (3) proceeding along some arbitrary path with linear and rotational velocity  $U_G$  and  $\Omega_G$  respectively. The application of Newton's second law of motion expressed in the global coordinate system yields the following equations:

$$\mathbf{F} = \frac{\mathbf{d}}{\mathbf{dt}} (\mathbf{m} \mathbf{U}_{\mathbf{G}}) \qquad \dots (1)$$

$$M_{G} = \frac{d}{dt} (I_{G} \Omega_{G}) \qquad \dots (2)$$

- Where F = The resultant externally applied force vector acting on the boat at the centre of gravity (considered as a column vector).
  - $M_G$  = The resultant externally applied moment vector acting  $\sigma_{33}$  the boat about the centre of gravity (considered as a column vector).
  - $U_G$  = The linear velocity vector with respect to the centre of gravity (considered as a column vector).
  - $\Omega_G$  = The rotational velocity vector of the boat about the centre of gravity (considered as a column vector).
  - m = The dry mass of the body.
  - $I_{\rm C}$  = A 3x3 matrix of the body's moment of inertia about an orthogonal axes parallel to x,y,z through the centre of gravity.

Although the expressions are more complicated, modelling the forces about the local origin O is desirable since O can be placed at a point on the body where symmetry might be considered to exist. Figure (6) shows the vector relationship between the two coordinate systems, one located at the centre of gravity, and the other at an origin O.



Figure 6: Two body fixed coordinate systems showing the body's motion vectors.

Since the velocity at the centre of gravity  $U_G$  is equal to the velocity U at the origin O, plus the velocity of the centre of gravity relative to O i.e.  $U_G = U + \Omega \times R$ , then equation (1) can be expressed as shown in equation (3).

$$\mathbf{F} = \mathbf{m} \frac{\mathbf{d}}{\mathbf{dt}} (\mathbf{U} + \mathbf{\Omega} \times \mathbf{R}) \qquad \dots (3)$$

Where	R	=	The position vector of the boat centre of gravity with
			respect to the origin O.
	Ω	=	The rotational velocity vector of the boat about the origin O.
	- •		

- **U** = The linear velocity of the boat at the origin O.
- × = The vector cross product operator.

The moment about the origin O is equal to the moment about the centre of gravity plus the moment due to the force F acting over the distance R. The moment is therefore given by

$$\mathbf{M} = \mathbf{M}_{\mathbf{G}} + \mathbf{R} \times \mathbf{F}$$

Substituting for  $M_G$  and F, where

$$\mathbf{M}_{G} = \frac{\mathrm{d}}{\mathrm{dt}} (\mathrm{I}\Omega) - \mathrm{m} \left( \mathbf{R} \times \frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{R}}{\mathrm{dt}^{2}} \right)$$

and F is given by equation (3) the following expression for the moment about the origin results.

$$M = \frac{d}{dt} (I\Omega) + m R \times \frac{d}{dt} (U) \qquad \dots (4)$$

where I is a 3x3 matrix of the moment of inertia about the origin O,

such that 
$$I = \begin{bmatrix} I_{xx} & -I_{xy} & -I_{xz} \\ -I_{yx} & I_{yy} & -I_{yz} \\ -I_{zx} & -I_{zy} & I_{zz} \end{bmatrix}$$
 and

M is the moment acting on the boat about the centre of gravity (considered as a column vector).

Since pitch, heave and roll are neglected, the vectors arising in the model are:

F	-	$(X, Y, 0)^{T}$
М	=	(0, 0, N) <sup>T</sup>
Ω	=	$(0, 0, r)^{T}$
U	æ	$(u, v, 0)^T$
R	=	$(x_{G}, 0, 0)^{T}$

Where u = The component of the boat's velocity resolved along the x-axis.

- v = The component of the boat's velocity resolved along the y-axis.
   r = The component of angular velocity of the boat resolved about
  - = The component of angular velocity of the boat resolved about the z-axis.
  - $x_G$  = The position of the boat's centre of gravity along the x-axis with respect to O.

Expanding equations (3) and (4) into their components, and using the values given for  $F, M, \Omega, U$  and R above, results in the following expressions:

$$m(u - rv - x_G r^2) = X$$
 ... (5)

$$m(v+ru+x_G r) = Y$$
 ... (6)

$$I_{zz} r + mx_G (v + ru) = N$$
 ... (7)

Now consider the vessel to have velocities and accelerations given by  $u_0, v_0, r_0, \tilde{u}_0, \tilde{v}_0, \tilde{r}_0$ . If each term is perturbed by a small amount then the resultant velocities and accelerations are given by:

$$u = \Delta u + u_{o}$$

$$v = \Delta v + v_{o}$$

$$r = \Delta r + r_{o}$$

$$u = \Delta u + u_{o}$$

$$v = \Delta v + v_{o}$$

$$r = \Delta r + r_{o}$$

$$Y = Y_{o} + \Delta Y$$

Consider now the development of the sway force model. Expanding the sway force equation (6) in terms of the above variables gives:

$$m[(\Delta \mathbf{v} + \mathbf{v}_{o}) + (\Delta \mathbf{r} + \mathbf{r}_{o})(\Delta \mathbf{u} + \mathbf{u}_{o}) + \mathbf{x}_{G}(\Delta \mathbf{r} + \mathbf{r}_{o})] = \mathbf{Y}_{o} + \Delta \mathbf{Y} \qquad ..(8)$$

Equation (8) is simplified by considering the case of steady state motion where the vessel is travelling with constant forward speed, with small disturbances occurring about this motion. Hence

$$\mathbf{v}_{o} = \mathbf{v}_{o} = \mathbf{r}_{o} = \mathbf{r}_{o} = \mathbf{u}_{o} = \mathbf{Y}_{o} = \mathbf{0}$$
, and  $\mathbf{u}_{o} \neq \mathbf{0}$ .

Therefore  $v = \Delta v$ ,  $r = \Delta r$ ,  $u = \Delta u$ ,  $v = \Delta v$ ,  $r = \Delta r$ ,  $Y = \Delta Y$  and  $u = \Delta u + u_0$ .

14

Neglecting the non-linear terms, the expression for the sway force is given by;

$$m(v+ru_{o}+x_{G}r) = Y$$
 ... (9)

Similarly, the yaw moment equation is given by

$$I_{zz} r + mx_G (v + ru_o) = N$$
 ... (10)

and the surge equation is given by

$$m(u) = X$$
 ...(11)

Assuming that  $\Delta u$  is small, then  $\hat{u}$  is negligible, therefore equation (11) is neglected here. Hence equations (9) and (10) form the basis of the mathematical model.

X and Y denote the sum of resolved components of external forces in the surge and sway directions respectively, and N gives the sum of external moments about the z-axis. In the case of the net external sway force:

$$Y = \sum Y_i$$
$$= Y_T + Y_H + Y_E$$

Where  $Y_T$  are the thrust forces in the sway direction,

 $Y_{\rm H}$  are the hydrodynamic forces in the sway direction, and

 $Y_E$  are any other external forces which act on the body.

Assuming that  $Y_E = 0$ , the hydrodynamic and thrust forces which act on the drone boat in the sway direction are assumed to be a function of the variables  $v, \hat{v}, r, \hat{r}, \delta$ , such that:

$$Y = Y_{H} + Y_{T}$$
  
= Y(v, v, r, r, \delta) ... (12)

Where  $\delta$  is the angle of the control surface (or in the case of the drone boat, the outboard motor) with respect to the centreline of the body.  $\delta$  is the resultant of a steady value  $\delta_{\alpha}$  and a small increment  $\Delta\delta$ .

A first order Taylor series expansion of the sway force is formed about the equilibrium values of the dynamic variables and neglecting terms higher than the first order, giving

$$Y = Y_{o} + \frac{\partial Y}{\partial v_{v=v_{o}}} \Delta v + \frac{\partial Y}{\partial v_{v=v_{o}}} \Delta v + \frac{\partial Y}{\partial r_{r=r_{o}}} \Delta r + \frac{\partial Y}{\partial r_{r=r_{o}}} \Delta r + \frac{\partial Y}{\partial \delta s_{s=\delta_{o}}} \Delta \delta \dots (13)$$

The literature expresses the partial derivatives as follows:

$$Y_v = \frac{\partial Y}{\partial v}_{v=v_o}$$
, etc.

This is not to be confused with the variables  $Y_T$  and  $Y_H$  which use uppercase letters for the subscripts to denote a particular component of the sway force. Using this notation and recognising that the steady state sway force  $Y_0 = 0$ , and the steady state outboard motor angle  $\delta_0 = 0$ , equation (13) becomes

$$Y = Y_v v + Y_v v + Y_r r + Y_r r + Y_\delta \delta \dots (14)$$

The term  $\Upsilon_{\delta}\delta$  models the sway force of the outboard motor's thrust. This is a very simple model which assumes that the motor produces constant thrust and that  $\delta$  is small.

The partial derivatives, otherwise known as hydrodynamic coefficients or derivatives, are a function of frequency. Therefore, the correct representation for  $Y_v$  is  $Y_v(\omega)$  where  $\omega$  is the angular frequency associated with the oscillation of the boat's motion. The frequency of the manoeuvres for the drone boat is expected to be small and so the coefficients can be taken as constants. Substituting equation (14) into (9) and rearranging, gives:

$$(Y_{v} - m)v + Y_{v}v + (Y_{v} - mx_{G})r + (Y_{r} - mu_{o})r + Y_{\delta}\delta = 0$$
 ... (15)

The same procedure applied to the yaw moment equation (10) gives:

$$(N_{v} - mx_{G})v + N_{v}v + (N_{r} - I_{zz})r + (N_{r} - mx_{G}u_{o})r + N_{s}\delta = 0$$
 ... (16)

The manoeuvring model, defined by equations (15) and (16) was used as the open loop transfer function to be controlled by the drone boat autopilot control law. For ease of computer simulation the open loop manoeuvring model and closed loop control model were transformed to the z-domain. An s-domain representation is required as an intermediate step (Campanella, Anderson, and Spirovski).

The differential operator d/dt is replaced with the Laplacian s, in equations (15) and (16), and rearranged to give the following equation:

$$\frac{\overline{r}}{\overline{\delta}} = \frac{(Es+F)I \cdot (As+B)J}{(As+B)(Cs+D) \cdot (Es+F)(Gs+H)} \qquad ...(17)$$

where  $\bar{r} = \bar{r}(s)$  [the Laplace transform of r(t)]

$$\overline{\delta} = \overline{\delta}(s)$$
 [the Laplace transform of  $\delta(t)$ ]  
 $A = Y_{\bullet} - m$   
 $B = Y_{\bullet}$   
 $C = N_{\bullet} - I_{zz}$ 

$$D = N_r - m x_G u_o$$

$$E = N_v - m x_G$$

$$F = N_v$$

$$G = Y_v - m x_G$$

$$f$$

$$H = Y_r - m u_o$$

$$I = Y_\delta$$

$$J = N_\delta$$

Equation (17) can be simplified further to give:

$$\frac{\overline{r}}{\overline{\delta}} = \frac{K(s+a)}{s^2 + bs + c} \qquad \dots (18)$$

Where  $\overline{\delta}$  and  $\overline{r}$  are the outboard angle and the yaw rate in the s-plane respectively. K, a, b, and c are functions of the hydrodynamic coefficients. This equation represents the open loop transfer function given in the s-domain of the change in boat heading in response to change in angle of thrust of the outboard motor.

### 3. Determining the Model Coefficients

The model parameters K, a, b, and c were determined by fitting system response measurements to the model form described in equation (18). The process of developing the mathematical manoeuvring model of a particular vehicle is summarised in figure (7).

The formulation of the model can be approached in either of two ways; firstly using a physical approach which builds a model based on known properties and an understanding of the underlying physical processes of the system, or secondly using a non-physical approach where the physical properties or mechanisms of the system may not be completely known, or are too complex to be modelled, or both.

The approach used in this report was a combination of both in that the form of the model was derived from force and moment equations expressed with hydrodynamic coefficients in a body-fixed coordinate system. For ease of computer simulation the expressions were transformed to a transfer function in the s-domain where the coefficients do not relate simply to the standard hydrodynamic derivatives.

There are several approaches to the evaluation of hydrodynamic coefficients. One such approach is the tank testing of scale models. Scale model testing involves subjecting a scale model of the hull form to precisely controlled motions in a fluid flow. Forces acting on the scale model are measured and from this hydrodynamic coefficients are derived. This method involves the use of specialised facilities such as towing tanks, circulating water channels, and planar motion mechanisms (Gill 1979).

The approach used here was to derive the required modelling parameters from full-scale manoeuvres. In its most basic form, this involves conducting manoeuvres with the actual vessel, in still waters, while measuring control surface angles (the stimulus), and the boat heading (the response). Recursive algorithms or trial and error methods can be employed to fit the experimental data to the postulated model form and so derive the model parameters.



Figure 7: The system identification process.

18

### 4. Full-Scale Drone Boat Manoeuvring Experiment

A manoeuvring trial of the prototype drone boat was conducted at HMAS *Crestvell*, Jervis Bay, Australian Capital Territory. Set manoeuvres were performed and measurements of rudder angle, boat heading, and speed in the surge direction were taken. Manoeuvres were conducted with and without the towed acoustic mine sweeping device. All manoeuvres were performed in zero sea-state by a helmsman.

Renilson (1988) and Abkowitz (1969) describe several types of manoeuvres suitable for characterising the full scale manoeuvring performance of vessels. The "zigzag" manoeuvre was used in this experiment. As a transient manoeuvre it allows both the acceleration and velocity components to be derived. Abkowitz (1980) considers a 10° zigzag to be a mild manoeuvre, where the significant contribution to the forces is made by linear terms, which is appropriate for the drone boat manoeuvring model.

In order to perform the zigzag, the boat was set on a straight course at a constant initial velocity of 7 knots. For a 10° manoeuvre, the helmsman set the rudder 10° to starboard. When the boat heading changed by 10°, the rudder was then set 10° to port. By continuing this action the vessel was made to zigzag.

Manoeuvring data were recorded for both a 10° and a 5° zigzag. The acoustic mine sweeping device was attached for a 10° manoeuvre.

The boat was fitted with a Coursemaster Model CM500 Series 2 marine autopilot system which was primarily used as the means of digitising and scaling the boat heading sensor signal. The rudder angle and boat heading sensors were manufactured and fitted by Coursemaster for the support of their autopilot system. Boat speed was measured with a conventional impellor-speed-log. Rudder angle was measured with a potentiometer-based transducer. A fluxgate compass was used for measuring the boat heading.

The digitised boat heading data were transferred to an MRL-developed data recorder. The drone boat was fitted with a HamilHaven Type 8904 data logger and this was used to acquire velocity and rudder angle data. Data were transferred to the MRL data logger after each manoeuvre.

The MRL data recorder was a Toshiba T1600/40 IBM compatible "laptop" personal computer. Data acquisition software was developed in Turbo Pascal which read data from the computer serial port and wrote them to a disk file.

### 5. Results

A graphical computer simulation of the manoeuvring model was developed in DOS Turbo Pascal and implemented on an IBM compatible personal computer. The input to the program requires, rudder angle as a function of time, the boat's initial forward speed, and a set of values for the coefficients described in equation (18). The program predicts the boat's response to the input data and plots boat heading as a function of time. The values of the coefficients shown below were derived by trial and error. The comparison between the simulation and the trial data allowed the coefficients to be adjusted until the best fit, as judged by eye were obtained. Initial values for the coefficients were generated from estimates of hydrodynamic derivatives for the drone boat hull form supplied by Renilson(1990).

Figures (8) and (9) show simulated and actual boat heading for two different manoeuvres of the drone boat without a tow. Both manoeuvres were performed with an initial forward speed of 7 knots.



Figure 8: A 5° zigzag manoeuvre.

The model coefficients used to generate the simulated boat headings in figures (8) and (9) were:

Κ	=	-0. <b>984</b>
a	=	0.109
ь	-	0.159
с	=	1.692

Figure (10) shows the comparison for a 10° zigzag manoeuvre for the drone boat with its tow load and an initial forward speed of seven knots.

The coefficients for this simulation were :

Κ	=	-0.555
8	-	0.110
Ь	=	0.141
с	-	1.120



Figure 9: A 10° zigzag manoeuvre.



Figure 10: A 10° zigzag manoeuvre performed while towing the pipe noise maker.

21

#### 6. Discussion

The literature describes various forms for mathematical manoeuvring models. The form used in this paper (equation 17) as described by Clarke(1982), was found to be the most suitable for its application to the modelling of closed loop control laws.

The zigzag is expected to be the predominant manoeuvre the drone boat will perform whilst recovering from a disturbance under the control of its autopilot. Hence the zigzag manoeuvre was deemed to be the most appropriate motion to validate the model.

Figures (8) and (9) show close agreement between simulation and trial data for two different zigzag manoeuvres with no tow load attached to the boat. The assumption that the boat and towed load can be described by the same model form appeared to be justified by the result obtained in figure (10).

At the time this work was conducted the parameters were required urgently for the subsequent simulation of autopilot proposals for the RAN and so for speed of response the model parameters were determined by trial and error. Whilst this was a somewhat tedious process, it did allow for the provision of timely advice. Trial and error appeared to be a satisfactory process for the simple model developed. However, the procedure can be automated by implementing a least squares method or by more advanced recursive methods described by Ljung(1986). This would be especially necessary for more complex models with a greater number of coefficients.

In all three comparisons it can be observed that the greatest discrepancy between simulation and actual data occurred at the points where the boat changes its direction. This error can be attributed to the fact that the model was developed from linear equations which assume that perturbations from the equilibrium state are small. Under this assumption the surge equation is neglected. Closer agreement might be obtained by including the surge equation in the model.

Notwithstanding the encouraging results obtained it should be emphasized that the model was formulated to describe a boat travelling at some forward constant speed whilst zigzagging due to small changes in the angle of thrust from a single outboard motor. This simple model was considered adequate to facilitate comparison of autopilot proposals for the drone boat.

The hull shape of the eight metre drone boat is to be geometrically similar to the six metre prototype. Therefore it is expected that the manoeuvring model developed would be applicable to the eight metre hull after dimensional scaling of the coefficients derived for the prototype boat.

### 7. Conclusion

This report describes a simple mathematical model of the prototype RAN precursor mine sweeping drone boat. The model was based upon the literature and describes a boat travelling along its surge axis at a constant speed produced by a constant thrust from a single outboard motor. The model predicts the yaw rate of the boat in response to small changes of the angle of thrust.

The formulation of the hydrodynamic forces acting on the boat is based on partial derivatives of the components of force with respect to the dynamic variables. The manoeuvring behaviour of the vessel is described by these derivatives.

A sea trial was held at Jervis Bay to collect manoeuvring data for the prototype drone boat. The data were used to derive coefficients for the model. These coefficients are considered to be accurate enough to provide reliable estimates of drone boat performance in still water conditions.

### 8. Acknowledgements

It is a pleasure to acknowledge the advice of Dr. M.Renilson of the Australian Maritime College, and the experimental support provided by the staff of CMDR D.Ramsden RAN (Mine Sweeping Project Director). We thank Dr. C. I. Sach for his significant comments.

### 9. References

Abkowitz, M. A., Stability and Motion Control of Ocean Vehicles, The MIT Press, Cambridge, Massachusetts, 1969.

Abkowitz, M. A., Measurement of Hydrodynamic Characteristics from Ship Manoeuvring Trials by System Identification, Society of Naval Architects and Marine Engineers Transactions, Vol. 88, 1980, pp. 283-318.

Campanella, G. F., Anderson, B., Spirovski, T., Royal Australian Navy Drone Boat Control Law Evaluation. Materials Research Laboratory Report. In Press.

Clarke, D., Gedling, P., and Hine, G., The Application of Manoeuvring Criteria in Hull Design Using Linear Theory, Paper No. 7., The Spring meetings, The Royal Institute of Naval Architects, 1982.

Gill, A.D., The Analysis and Synthesis of Ship Manoeuvring. Issued for written discussion, The Royal Institution of Naval Architects, 1979.

Ljung, L., and Soderstrom T., Theory and Practice of Recursive Identification. The MIT Press, Cambridge, Massachusetts, London England, 1986.

Renilson, M.R., Ship Manoeuvring, Course Lecture Notes, School of Nautical Studies, Aust. Maritime College, January 1988.

Renilson, M.R., Private Correspondence, 1990

## 10. Nomenclature

x, y, z	A set of moving, orthogonal, right hand Cartesian coordinate axes fixed to the boat, at some arbitrary origin O.
0	Arbitrary origin fixed to the boat.
x <sub>o</sub> ,y <sub>o</sub> ,z <sub>o</sub>	A set of orthogonal, right hand Cartesian coordinate axes fixed in space to some arbitrary origin.
F	Resultant externally applied force vector acting on the boat at the centre of gravity.
M	Resultant externally applied moment vector acting on the boat about the origin O.
M <sub>G</sub>	The resultant externally applied moment vector acting on the boat about the centre of gravity.
U <sub>G</sub>	Linear velocity vector of the boat with respect to the centre of gravity.
Ω <sub>G</sub>	Rotational velocity vector of the boat about the centre of gravity.
R	Position vector in local coordinates of the boat centre of gravity with respect to the local origin O.
Ω	Rotational velocity vector of the boat about the local origin O.
U	Linear velocity of the boat at the local origin O.
I	Moment of inertia about the local origin O. The moment of inertia is given by a (3x3) matrix.
I <sub>o</sub>	Boat's moment of inertia about the centre of gravity. The moment of inertia is given by a (3x3) matrix.
t	Time.
x	Surge Force along the x-axis.
Y	Sway Force along the y-axis.
N	Moment about the z-axis.
u,	Steady surge velocity.
u	Surge velocity.
• Uo	Steady surge acceleration.
• u	Surge acceleration.

24

V <sub>o</sub>	Steady sway velocity.
v	Sway velocity.
• Vo	Steady sway acceleration.
• v	Sway acceleration.
r,	Steady yaw rate.
r	Yaw rate.
• Го	Steady yaw acceleration.
• r	Yaw acceleration.
Ψ	The instantaneous boat heading.
m	Dry mass of the vehicle.
I	Moment of inertia about the z-axis.
x <sub>g</sub>	Position of the boat's centre of gravity along the x-axis.
δ	Outboard motor angle.
Y <sub>T</sub>	Resolved component of thrust forces in the sway direction.
Y <sub>H</sub>	Resolved component of hydrodynamic forces in the sway direction.
Y <sub>E</sub>	Other external forces which act on the body apart from thrust and hydrodynamic forces.
N,	Damping moment derivative with respect to sway.
Y,	Damping force derivative with respect to sway.
N.	Added moment of inertia coefficient with respect to sway.
Y.	Added mass coefficient with respect to sway.
N <sub>r</sub>	Damping moment derivative with respect to yaw.
Y <sub>r</sub>	Damping force derivative with respect to yaw.
N.	Added moment of inertia coefficient with respect to yaw.

Y.	Added mass coefficient with respect to yaw.
Υ <sub>δ</sub>	Exciting force coefficient with respect to the outboard angle.
N <sub>s</sub>	Exciting moment coefficient with respect to outboard angle.
Y <sub>te</sub>	Cross-track error.
A,B	Points defining the position of the baseline track in $(x_o, y_o)$ plane.

SECURITY CLASSIFICATION OF THIS PAGE

UNCLASSIFIED

REPORT NO.	AR NO.	REPORT SECURITY CLASSIFICATION
MRL-TR-93-33	AR-008-563	Unclassified

TITLE

Development of a manoeuvring model for the RAN precursor mine sweeping drone boat

AUTHOR(S) Brendon Anderson and Gary Car	npanella	CORPORATE AUTHOR DSTO Materials Research Laboratory PO Box 50 Ascot Vale Victoria 3032
REPORT DATE January, 1994	task no. DST 89/151	SPONSOR DSTO
FILE NO. G6/4/8-4466	REFERENCES 8	PAGES 27
CLASSIFICATION/LIMITATION REVIEW DATE		CLASSIFICATION/RELEASE AUTHORITY Chief, Maritime Operations Division
SECONDARY DISTRIBUTION		
	Approved for pub	lic release
ANNOUNCEMENT		
	Announcement of this re	port is unlimited
KEYWORDS	······	
Hydrodynamics	Manoeuvring	
ABSTRACT	·····	

A three-degree-of-freedom mathematical model has been developed to describe the zigzag manoeuvring behaviour of a prototype hull form used in the Royal Australian Navy precursor mine sweeping drone boat. The model predicts the yaw rate of the vessel in response to the angle of thrust that a single outboard motor makes with respect to the centre line of the boat. The outboard motor is assumed to supply a constant thrust. This report describes the development of the model from first principles and its transformation into a form suitable for use in closed loop control modelling. The coefficients of the model were determined using full scale manoeuvring data for the prototype hull form.

#### Development of a Manoeuvring Model for the RAN Precursor Mine Sweeping Drone Boat

#### Brendon Anderson and Gary Campanella

#### (MRL-TR-93-33)

#### DISTRIBUTION LIST

Director, MRL - title page only Chief, Maritime Operations Division Dr C.I. Sach Mr Brendon Anderson Mr Gary Campanella MRL Information Services Chief Defence Scientist (for CDS, FASSP, ASSCM) 1 copy only Director (for Library), Aeronautical Research Laboratory Head, Information Centre, Defence Intelligence Organisation OIC Technical Reports Centre, Defence Central Library Officer in Charge, Document Exchange Centre 8 copies Army Scientific Adviser, Russell Offices Air Force Scientific Adviser, Russell Offices Navy Scientific Adviser Scientific Adviser, Policy and Command Director General Force Development (Land) Senior Librarian, Main Library DSTOS Librarian - MRL Sydney 5 copies Librarian, H Block Librarian, Australian Defence Force Academy Serials Section (M List), Deakin University Library, Deakin University, Geelong 3217 NAPOC QWG Engineer NBCD c/- DENGRS-A, HQ Engineer Centre, Liverpool Military Area, NSW 2174 DASD, APW2-1-OA2, Anzac Park West, Canberra ACT Counsellor, Defence Science, Embassy of Australia - data sheet only Counsellor, Defence Science, Australian High Commission - data sheet only Scientific Adviser to DSTC Malaysia, c/- Defence Adviser - data sheet only Scientific Adviser to MRDC Thailand, c/- Defence Attache - data sheet only Head of Staff, British Defence Research and Supply Staff (Australia) NASA Senior Scientific Representative in Australia **INSPEC:** Acquisitions Section Institution of Electrical Engineers Head Librarian, Australian Nuclear Science and Technology Organisation Senior Librarian, Hargrave Library, Monash University Library - Exchange Desk, National Institute of Standards and Technology, US Acquisition Unit (DSC-EO/GO), British Library, Boston Spa, Wetherby Yorkshire LS23 7BQ, England Exchange Section, British Library Document Supply Centre Library, Chemical Abstracts Reference Service **Engineering Societies Library, US** Documents Librarian, The Center for Research Libraries, US Commander, Australian Mine Warfare Forces, HMAS Waterhen, Waverton NSW 2060 Minesweeping Project Director, Department of Defence, Campbell Park Offices (CP2-3-06), Canberra ACT 2600 Mine Warfare Systems Centre Project Director, Department of Defence, Campbell Park Offices (CP2-2-18), Canberra ACT 2600 Deputy Director, Mine Warfare Development, Department of Defence, Russell Offices (B-4-01), Canberra ACT 2600 OIC, Royal Australian Navy Trials and Assessment Group, 54 Miller Street, North Sydney NSW 2060 Head Librarian, Australian Maritime College, PO Box 986, Launceston TAS 7250 Dr M. Renilson, Australian Maritime College, PO Box 986, Launceston TAS 7250